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)

PLEA AGREEMENT

The Umted States of America and Diana Bakir Demﬁta (“defendant™) hereby enterinto
the following Plea Agreement pursuant to Rule 11{c}(§){B) of the Pederal Rules of Cnmmai

Procedure (“Fed. R. Caim. P.%): -

RIGHTS OF DEFENDANT
1 The defendant undersiaﬁ.ds her ﬁ ghis:
(a} z§ be representeﬁ by an attomey;
{b)- to be charged by Indictment;
) “%0 piead not vuﬂzy o any cnmma] charge bmuvht agams‘i her,
{(j‘} 1o have a trial by jury, at which she Vwoa}d be presumed not
guilty of the charge and the Uﬁiied ‘States would have 10 prove every essential element of
the charged offense beyond 2 ;ea.sena’bia doubt for herto be. found guilty;
{g)  toconfront ané cross-examine witnesses against her and to

subpoena witnesses in her defense at trial;



H not 1o be compelled to incriminate herself;

(2) o appéa} her conviction, if she i3 found guiitﬁ; and
(h) to appeal the imposition of senience against her.

AGREEMENT TO PLEAD GUILTY
AND WAIVE CERTAIN RIGHTS

2. The defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives the zigiﬁs set out ir; ‘p.arlagx.‘aph
1(’b)—(g}.above as well as ali jurésdicti(mal and venue defenses to the proseéution of ti;is case,
and agrees vclumanly to consent 1o the prosecnuon of this case against her in the United States ,
District Court for the District of Columbia. The defendant also knowingly and voluntanly
waives the right to file any appeal, any col_}ateral att_ack, or any othcr writ or motmn, mciud_mg
© but not iimitéd to an appeal under 18 US.C. §73’?42 or a motion under 28 U.S.C..§§ 2241 or
2255, that chal]enges the sentence 1:mposed by the Court uniess the sentence amposed by the _

Court censtitutes an upward depar{ure from the Guideline range deemed apphcable by the Court,
as descn’bed in paragraph 8, in which case defendant’s appeal wzll be expressiy limited to

contesnng the upward departure. This aOreement does not atfect the rwhts or obligations of the

will waive indictment and p}eaé guilty at arraigniment 10 a ene—count Information 10 be fﬂeé in
the United States. District Court for ihe Dlsmct of Columbia charging the defendant wnh Wire. .
fraud'in véb}ation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343. -

3, The defendant, pursuant to the terms of this Plea Agreement, will
plead guilty to the criminal charge described V%n 'paz'agmph 2 aﬁove and will maké 2 facméﬂ
| adm;sswn of guilt 1o the Coun in accordance with Fed. R. Crim. P. 11, set forth in paragraph 4.

The defendant agrees those fac%.s es{a%:}hsh her guili beyond a reaseﬂabie doubt.



FACTUAL BASIS FOR OFFENSE OF CONVICTION -

4, Had this case goﬁe 10 trial, the United States would have presente.é evidénce
sufficient to preyé the following facts: |
{a)  For purposes of this ?}ea Agreement, the “relevant ;}eﬁad’; is from in or
aboﬁt September 2004 until in or about March 2005. During the rele\{-_ant period, Diana
Bakir Denﬁita \‘Norked in Bagﬁdad, Irag as thé President §f G]obai»LinﬁihDistribuﬁon Lic
(“Global Link™), a general contracting company org'ani'ied and existin-g under the laws of .
Delaware, ;A;‘ith its pﬁnci-;-)ai.p-}acé of Eﬁgiﬁéés and dﬁéréﬁoﬁs- in the gﬁiéﬁnaﬁoﬁﬂﬁoﬁe;
Baghdad, Iraq and witﬁ an addrééé in Port Orangé, Fion'da.
(b} On May 11, 200j4,_ the Wh?itc Héuse issued INationa! Security Pr.?;si&énﬁa}
Directive 36, assi gning pﬁncipal responsibility for training, deve!oping; and equipping
the Iragi Sécun’ty Forces tc;; the United States Department of Defense Centrél“Connﬁand
: (“CENTCOM”}. 'As pari of its efforts, CENTCOM established the Multi-ﬁational
Security Transition Commaﬁd - Irag (“MNS’?CJ”), which reported o CENTCOM.

{c) MNMNSTC-1's mission was to provide regional security by assisting the Ima:,ﬁ

Government in thg development of Iragi Security Forces. During the relevant pén'o_d,
MNSTC-1 oversav.q the Civéééaﬁ Policg Assistance Training Téam (“CPATT”), which was
tasked to é&élo? ée lfa;;i Ci?iiiéﬁ Police Forces.w . R
(d) f)uring the relevant period, MNS'?GI’S and CPATT's contracting

procedures were regulated by the Federal Acquisition chu}atiéns*{“FAR”},



)] In an email of September 20, 2004, Demilta was advised by Person A, a

Senior Contracting Advisor for CPATT, of upcoming contract #W914NS-05-M-9120 for

540 Level TIA bullet-proof vests for use by Iraqi security forces. |

H For the award of contract #WSMNS-(}S-M@HO, FAR 8§ 12.203, 13.104
reqﬁéred a competitive bidding process. In order “to promote p(_}mpetiticm 1o the
‘maximum exient practicable,” the FAR describes é colﬁpetiséye bédding procéss asone
where the contracting office recéz’ves at least three independent bids. -FAR §13.104. In
an email of September 20, 2004, Demilta was requested by Person A to “use Ther] -
various contacts to obtain three bids...”

(2 During the relevant period, Demilta devised a scheme to defraud the
United States of ﬁaéney by means of material false or, fraudu}em pretenses and
representations. This scheme consisted of Demilta frauc}u};emiy securin g-.contract

#W914NS-05-M-9120, and thus payment under that“contract, by subvertjﬁglthc

| app}iéable contracting requirements through ﬁae submission of multiple sham bids. Asa

part of the scheme, Demilta deceptively used dormant and/or related companies to submit

_ apparently competitive bids for contract #W914NS-05-M-9120, thereby fraudulently .

inducing thre award of and pa);mem for that contract, by creating the imprz_essiwon Gf the
. required competitive contracting process, when in fatt, né coripetition existed: -
(h) On September 21, Demilta used a personal email account with Yahoo!

~ Inc., based in Sunnyvale, California, to email Person B, the ownerof a2 'Kuwaiﬁ general
irading firm, Company A. Demilta’s email requested that Pers5n B “send me three
invoices[,] one in your name, one in mine and invent another. Your ?m‘?cs retail plus

60%[,] second plus 80[%] and third 100[%].”
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()  OnSeptember 22, 2004, Demilta used her Yahoo! email account to-email

Person C, a Contrac{AdminisifatOf for Company A, about the bullet-proof vés; contract.

Tn her email, Derﬁilta;cmindeé Person C to “jssue three bids and senAd to .[C?ATT},”
Demilta ééded: “Remember 40% for {Coﬁpany A} aﬁd ti_ie other two "inc%ease-' the

percentage.” o

() On or about Septembgr Zi-er 27, as instnicted by De@lm, chbn C
submitted three bids for the.540 buliet-proof vests. Pursuant 1o Demilta’s instruction,

' Compaﬂy A’s bid was the Jowest one ai“ $375 per vest and ﬁe ot};e;r twe.bids were sham™
or cover bids intended to‘appear competitive, when, in fact, they were not. Ccmﬁany B,a
donn-ant company owned by Person B, bid marginally higher than Compaﬁy -A.. The

.cover letter on Compaﬁy B’s bid was nominally signed by an individual who had not
worked for Corﬁpany A in over five years. The third sham bid was from a Person B -

~ company inveolved in the oil industry. fhe cover iéner on this bid was -norrlainaliy si g;zed

by Company A’s administrative aséistant.

3 On Gctober 2’?,72004,- Company A was awarded contract #W914NS-05-
Company A’s contfact price was $202,500 ex-CPATT’s warechouse in Baghdad. The
 United States Department of De_fense, Defense }?inaﬁcs and Accounting Service
(“DFAS™), located at 325 Brooks Rgad, Rome, NY 13441-4527, was listed on the face of
the contract as the éntity to disburse payment to Company A upon completion of the |

conﬁaei,



)] Also on October 27, 2()%4 Person B authored a letier on behaif of .

Company A auihonzmg Demilia “to negotiate, prov;cic and receive all funds” raiaied o
the cgntract. _ 7 | | |

(m)  Onorbefore December 1'5, 2004, Demilta effected de!ii}efyéﬁ the 340
vests to CPATT’s warehouse in Baghdad. On February 8, 2005, Demi}tavpmpar.ed and
presented a vou;:her to a United Staies.AlHBy disbursing égem 1o collect the fﬁnds due
under the contract, and on or afier February 19, 2005, Dem:ha was paad $2()2 500 in cash.

(n) The funds di sbursed to Delmha Were adxmmszered by members of the
Unite& States Army assigned to Army Disbursing Station 8547 at Camp Anaconda, iraq
and drawn from the Irag Relief and Reconstruction Fund, established and endoﬁved by
'.Congress with $20.9 billion on N ovember 6, 2003 to help rebuild Irag.

(o) In or about March 2005, a disbursing agent at Army Dilébursiﬁg Station
_ 8547 input the pa):rmem éata related 1o contract #W914NS-05;M-9 120 in an accounting
database called the Dep}oyable Disbursing Syétem (“DDS”). This payment da;té. was then
sent via email from Camp Aﬁaconda,— Ifaq to the United States Depamn.ent of Defense,
Defense Fipance anci Accounting Service (“DFAS”) in Rome,; New York. A dlsbursmcx
aaem from Army Disbursing Station 8547 subsequenﬁy maﬂed the onginal documents
from Iraq to the DFAS in Rome, NY for administrative filing.

(P)_ For purposes of executing this scheme or artifice to defraud, Demilta -
transmitted of caused to be transmitted wris;in gs, signs, signals, pictures, or sounds by
wire commuﬁécations in interstate or foreign commerce, including various emails sent 1o

and from Demilta’s Yahoo! account, located in Sunnyvale, California, from and to



various places outside thg State of California, and email and accounting documents -

Hanémined between ﬁaq and DFAS in Rome,'NY.-

(q)‘ A substantial part of this fraudulent scheme was ccmmiitcd from outside
the United States, including from Kuwait, where Company A is based, and from iraq,
where Demilta ived and where the bullet-proof vests were contracted fof and delivered.

() ‘Demilta was the organizer.and leader of this illegai scheme to dcfraud the
Umied States of money through the fraudulent inducement of contract awards

(s) = Theloss occasmned to the Umtcd States Department of Defense by
Demilta’s conduct was more than $70,000.

COMMISSION OF ADDITIONAL OFFENESE

5. In addition to the offense of conviction, as set forth in paragraph 4, defendant also
stipuiétes, pursuant 1o United States Sentencing Guidelines (“U.S.8.G.” “Séntencin;‘
Gu;dehnes or “Gmdelmes”) § 1B1.2(c), to the comxmssmn of the foiiowmv additional offense.
For the purpose o_f sentencing pursuant to this plea agreemnent, this offense shall be treated as if

ihe defendant had been convicted of an additicmaﬁ count charging this offense.

(a) In or about 2004-03, deferidant wag seHeited and then did directdy and indirecty

corruptly give,_ offer, and promise a thlng ef value 1o a public official with ihe intent to
mﬂucme an ofﬁcial act and with the intent to induce such‘puﬁ}ic pfficial to do Uﬁ"?{jﬁﬁf’ '
" “to doanactin v:o?atzoﬂ of the %awfui duty of su,ch official; to wit, after being sahcstcd‘
defendant gave approximaiely 360,00(} in 1.8, currency to Piersqﬁ A w;éth intent to
“induce Person A to exercise his influence with CPA’IT in the award of CPA’I"? CGE‘%H&C'{&-‘»'
in violation of _hié sfﬁciaé dutigs, and wit}a intent to inﬂuenés _?ei'sen A 1o expedite
payment for CPATT contracts awarded and to be awarded to the defendant’s company.
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) During the -2004-85, Person A, a Senior Contracting Advisor for C?ATT, was a . |

“public oificial,” 2s defined by 18 US.C. § 20I(a)(I).
(©)  Defendant’s additional offense conduct violated 18 U.S.C. § 201(b)(1).

POSSIBLE MAXIMUM SENTENCE

6. The defendant andérstands that the s_tatﬁtory maximum penalty which may be
imposed agaiﬁst her upon con_véétion for a.vioiaﬁoé of 18 U.S.C. §1343 ig: .
(a) atermof impﬁs_opmént for twenty (20) years (18 U.S.C. § 1343);
(b) afineinan amoa:‘mtﬂequa} to the greatest of: (1) $25()‘,_@00; or {2) twice the B
- gross pecuniary gain derived from the crime; or (3) twice the ,gfo,s_s pecuniary loss caused |
tothe victims of the crime; (18 U.S.C. §3571);

(c) aterm of supervised release of not more than three years following any term
of impﬁsonment, I ﬂ}e défendant violates any condition bf supe_rvised release, the
de_fendam could be impﬁ_soned forupto two (2).yeérs (18 USC § 3559‘(&)(3); 18USC.

| § 3583(’0_)(’2) and (€)(3); and U.S.S.G. § Sbl.ﬁ(a)(z}).

1. In addition, the defendant understands that:

» (a} - pursuant o 18 'Eﬁ’:S;C; § 3663A(C) YA, the Court shalt order her

pay restitution to the victims of theraff;anse; and
o) ‘pm'suaﬁi 10 18 U.B.C. § 3013(a)(2)(A), the Court is required 1o order ﬁhe e
defendant 10 pay a $100.00 special assessmeni upon conviction for the chérgeé cﬁmé.

SENTENCING GUIDELINES

8. The defendant understands that the Guidelines are advisory, not mandatory, and
that the Court must consider the Guidelines in effect on the day of sentencing, along with the

other factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a), in determining and imposing sentence. The .

g



defendant understands that the Guidelines determinations will be made by the Coim_ bva

preponderance of the &vidence standard. The defendant tnderstands that ajthough the Gourt 18
not ult.ima{ély bound to Empose a sentence within the applicable Guidelines i"ange, its sentence
must be reason_aiﬂe based apoﬁ consideration of aﬁ relevant sentencing factors set forth in 18
‘U.S.('I. § 3553(a). The defendant agrees fhat this plea agr;ﬂemem, a}cmg‘with any sentencing
memorandé., and the record that will be created by the United States and the ciéfendaﬁ #t the plea
hearing will provide sufficient information concerning the defendant, the crimes charged, and the
defendant’s role in the cri‘mes to enable the me_aningfu} exercise of the Court’s éentencin g

~ authority under 18 U.S.C. § 3553. Pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 1B1.8, the United States agreés that
self-incriminating information that the defendant provides 10 the United States pursﬁam to this

- Plea Agreemenz will not be used in dctex'miningrthe defendant’s applicable Guidelines range;
except 1o the extent provided in U.S.8.G. § 1B1.8(b).

SENTENCING AGREEMENT

9. As to the offense of conviction, the United States and the defendant understanci,

agree, and stipulate 10 the following applicable sentencing guidelines considerations and factors:

)y - The November 12006 editiorrof the -Gni-&ci-in-es-.-apyiim, -----------
®)  The controlling Guideline is U.S.S.G. § 2B1.1; -
(c) - Pursuant to the Gm’deh?n!cs § 2B1 .i'(a}ﬁ}, the base offense level is 7,
(dy  Theloss intended by the offense was more than $70,000 but not more than
$120,00G,'and therefore an eight-level -incg'ea?se is appropriate pursuaﬁt o
US5.G. § 2B1.1(%)(§)(E§;__and |
(). Demilia was the ]‘frzader and organizer of this criminal activity, and thus a.

two-level increase is appropriate pursuant to U.5.5.G. § 3B1 ui(?;:}.
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)] The parties agree that either side may make arguments at sentencing

regarding whether the conduct deserbed mparag.raph I Warranis a two-level
sentencing enhancement under U.S.5.G. § 2B i.lﬁa‘)@. ‘

'10.  As to the additional offense conduct déscﬁbed in paragraph 3, the United Statcs
and the dcféndant understand, agree, am:i étipula;e to _th.e following ap@iicabie sentencing
gm'de}ines considerations and faciors: o

(a)  The November.}; 2006 edition of the Guidelines applies;

() The comrouiﬁg Guidelineis U.8.5.G. § 2CL.1; -~

()  Pursuant to Guideline § 2C 1.1¢a)(2), the base offense lovel is 12;

(d) .‘ -l_’i’heT value of the payment receiv_ed was more than $30,000 but not more

$70,000, and thqs a s~ix~}ével incz'-ea.se is appropn'ate. U.8.5.G. § 2BL.I1GY D)

11.  The parties further aoree that pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3D1.2, the offense of

conviction and the additional offense conduct are not c}osely related offenses: ‘Therefore, the
' . paﬂie.s' agree that upon determining the Offense Leve} for the offense of conviction and ﬂne
additmna} offense conduct, as set forth in paravraphs 9-10 above, Guideline § 3D1.4 then app?ues _

to yield-the Combined fo&nss. chci As 1o the Combined Offense Level, the aames agae that

there exists no awravatmv or mitigating circumstance of a kind, orto a degree, not adequat‘.iy
taken into consid?raiiéﬁ by the United States Sentencing Comrrission in forrnulating the -
Guide}ines jus‘tﬁfyﬁng a departure pursuant to U.8.5.G. § 5K2.0, except that the paﬁ;ties agrée'-to -
recornmend 1ha§ a one-level downward departure is appropriate pursuant té U.,S.S G. § 5K2.16,
in recognition of the defandam s voluntarily disclosure of the additional offense conduat and that
it was unlikely such conduct would havc oiherwzse been dgscoverscj The pames further écree as

io the offenses not to seek or support any senience outside %he Guidelines range deemed
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applicable by the Court, as described in paragraphs §-14, or 1o seek or support any Guidelines

adjustment for any 1€ason not set forth in this Plea Agreement.

12 The United States docs not oppose a two-level reéuctien in the defendant’s
combined offense level, based upon the defendant’s apparen_t_ prompt recognitieﬁ and afﬁﬁaﬁve
accépiance.of personal responmblhty for her criminal conduct If the Court determmcs the
defendant’s offense level to be 16 or greater prior 1o the operaﬁon of U. S. S.G.3EL 1(a), the

- United States agrées o make a motion unnder 1.5.5.G. § 3E1.1{b) for an additional one~leve]
decrease inrecognition of the defendant’s timely not;ification-cf ‘her imeﬁtﬁon to-plead guiﬁty,
The United States may oppose any adjustment for accépgénce of responsibiiity if the defendant
{a) fails to admit eacﬁ and ew.fery itern in the factual stipulation; (b) denies involvement in the
offenses; (c) gives' conflicting ﬁatemgnts about her im'o}v_emém in the offenses; {d) is untruthful
with the Court, this Office, or the U.nited States Probation Office; (&) obstructs ér attempts to
obstmct justice prior 10 semencm ; (f) engages in aﬁy crim'iﬁa% conduct between the date of this
| 3areement and the date of senfencing; or (g) attempts to withdraw her p}ea of guilty.
i3.  The defendant understands that there is no agrecmem as to the semencmg
provisions set out in Chapter Four of the Guidelines, and that the fore 2oing semeﬁcézzg guide‘ﬁaes
calculations could chén ge Easeé upon her criminal history category, or if sheis a cafeé? offendér,
or if the instant offensg was paﬁ of a pattern of criminal conduct from which she derived a
éubstantéa% poriior:} of her income.
L Subject to the full and continuing cooperation of the defendant, as described in
paragraph 19 of this Plea Agreement, ané prior to sentencin g in this case, the United Siaies
agrees iha& it will make a motion, pursuant 1o U.8.8.G. §5K1.1, for a least a two-}eveﬁ

downward departure from the Gulde}mes incarceration range because of the dcfendani s
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substantial assistance in the government’s investigations of violations of fedéral criminal law.

The United States shall have sole discretion in deteriining whether the defendant has provided

substantial assistance, and therefore, whether any motion pursuant to § 5K1.1 should be made.

" the defendant 1o withdraw her guilty plea once it has been entered. It is'undersiéod that, ei}cn i

The United States’s determination of whether the defendant has pi‘ovidéd substantial assistance
will not depend in any way on the outcome of any trial or other proceeding. If the United States

makes a downward departure motion, the defendant is bound by the &epaﬂﬁi‘g Ecvéi

recommended by the United States. It is understood that should the United States determine that =
thé defendant has not provided 'substan't:iéﬂ”éséis’tixiéé, §lich 2 deterrmnation will Telease the ~ 7

United States from any obligation to make 2 motion pursuant to § 5K1.1,but'it will not entitie

the United States makes a downward departure ﬁ:otiﬁn, the sentence to be iﬁapoéé&i on the
defendant remains within the sole discretion of the Court.

15. Subject to the oﬁgoing, full, aﬁdl truthful cooperation of the defendani )
described in paragraph 19 of this Pléa Agr&:méﬂt,“aﬁd before sentencing in the case, the United

States will fully advise the Court and the Probation Office of the fact, manner, and extent of the

investigation and prosecutions, all maierial facts relating to the defendant’s involvement in the

‘charged offense, and all other relevant conduct. To enable the Conrt 1o have the benefitof all

relevant sentencing information, the United States may request, and the defendant will not
oppose, that sentencing be postponed until her cooperation is complete.

i6.  The United States and the defendant understand that the Court retains complete

discretion to accept or reject the Guidelines calculations provided for in paragraphs 9-10 of this -
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Piea Avrcemem The defendant understands that, as prov;ded in Fed R. Crim. P. ii(c)(3}(B) if

' {he Court does not 1mpose a sentence consment with the recomended Gu;dehnes calculation
contained in this Agreement, she neverthe}ess has nc riﬂht to withd'raw her guilty plea.

EF‘ENDANT’S AGREEMENT T{) FILE TAX RETURNS

i7. Defendani agrees that no later than 180 days following the entry of this Plea
Agreement, defendant and Globakljnk-shali file accurate tax returns or amended tax returns, as
" pecessary folr the tax ‘years 2004 through 2005, and will pay or will enter into an agreement to
| péy, taxes due and OWipg by her to the IZRS, including intcresz, on such terms and cc&nditioﬁ* as
| she and the IRS agree. Defendant agrées to cooperate fully, complete}y; an‘d. truﬁhfuliy with ihg '
IRS in determining the accufaéy and completénéss of all required returns or arnended retums: -

" RESTITUTION:. .

18. As to the offense of conviction, the defendant agrees to the entry of a restitution
order pursuant 1o 18 U.S.C. 8§ 3556 and 3663A(c)(1}(A){ii). The parties agree that, as 1o the
. offense of conviction, restitution is owed for the fel}owing actual losses:

A. $70,000 to the United States Department of Defense.

There is no.agreement as to how much restitution is owed for the additional offense conduct. . - ..

The United States agrees not 10 oppose the imposition of a reasonable payment schedt‘ﬂe’,.as
" girected by the Court after its review of the factors ennmerated in 18 U.S.C. § 3664. -

DEFENDANT’S COOPERATION

19. The defendant will cooperéte fully and truthfully with the United States in-ﬂﬁe‘

jnvestigation and prosecution of this case as well as any other federal investigation, prosecution
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or pfoceeding- 1o which the United States is a party ("Federal Proceeding”). The ongoing, ﬁﬂh

and truthful cooperation of the defendant shall include, but not be limited to:

(a}  producing all non-privileged doéumenis, inclﬁéir;g claiﬁmd personal
docﬁments, and other matenals, wherever locgted, in the posséssion, cﬁs&o‘dy, or control |
of the defendant, 'requestéd .by attorneys and ‘ag‘e'nts of the United States;-

(b)  making herself avéi}able for 'imlery‘iews, not at the expense ef

. the United States, upon the request of attomeyé and .agents; of the United States;
(c)  responding fully and 'mhfuuy to all inquiries of the United
_ States in connection with any Federal Proceeding, without falsély ém:y)l_icaﬁng any person’
or intentionally withhdiding any information, subject to the penaltics of makjng false
statements (18 U. S C. § 1001) and obstruction of justlce (18 U.S.C. § 1503 et $eQ.);

(d) othew/:se voiuntanly prccunno and providing the United States with any

‘ mmpnv;}eoed material or mfonnatwn not requested in (a) - {c) of this paragraph that
she may have access to that is related to any Federal Proceeding; and

{e} when called upon to do solby ;he United States in conmection with any
Federal Proceeding, testifying in the grand jury, trial, and other judicial proceedings,
fully, truthfully, and undef oath, subject (0 the penalties of perjury (18 U.S C § 1621),

‘ false étateﬁ‘icms or declarations in gfénci? jury or cour%mprocéédings (ig ﬁ;S.C, § 1623),
contcmpt (18 .S C §§ 431-02), and obstmcizon of justice (18 U.S.C. § 1503 et seq. }

GOWWNT’S A GREEMENT

20. | Sﬁbjeci 1o the full, truthful, and continuing cooperaﬁm} of the defendant, as

describeﬁ in paragraph 19 of this Plea Agreement, and up{m'the Court’s acceptance of the guiity :
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plea called for by this Plea Agreement and the impositioﬁ of sentence, the Uaitéd States Wiii ﬁ'ét" :

bring further criminal charges against the defendant for any act or offense committed before the
date of this Plea Ac%eﬁment that was undertaken in furtherance of the crimes arising from the
fac‘ts set forth in the Information and this Plea Agreement or for cnmes dasclased to the United
States before the date of t%ns Plea Agreement and dlscussed dunng bneﬁngs related o this Plea -
| Agreement (“Relevant Offense”). The nonprosecution terms of this paragraph do not apply to
civil matters of any kind, to any violation of the federal tax or securities -iaws, to any cﬁme.of
Viélence 61' 1o any offenses which the Defendant failed to disclose fully to the Umtcd States
AR The defendant understands that she may be subject to admmls%_rauve action by
federal 'or state agencies other than the Depaﬁme'nt ‘of Justice, Antitrast Divisi on, base’d upbﬁ thé &
| coﬁﬁcﬁon resulting from thi‘s_ Plea Agreement, and that this Piea Agféement in no ﬁvay controls
whatever action, if any, other agencies may take. However, the Unitéd States agrceé that, if .
requést’ed, it \;vi}i advise the appropriate officials of any govémmentaj agency consi'deﬁng such
administrative action of thefact manner, and extent of the cnoperaﬁéﬁ of the défendant 2s 2

 matter for that agency to conszder before detemmmng what adrministraiive acnon if any, m 1ake.

: REPRESENTATION BY COUNSEL

22. The defenéam has reviewed all ]egal and factual asp«ects of this case

'wnh her at‘{omey and is fully satzsﬁed wsth her attomey s 1ega} zepresemanon The defendam has

thoroughiy reviewed this Plea Agreement with her attomey and has received satisfactory
explanations from her attorney concerning each paragraph of this Plea Agreement and alternatives

available to the defendant other than entering into this Plea Agreement. Afier confernng with her



attomey ané'censideﬁng all available alternatives, the defendant has made a i{ﬁt}‘?&ingf_anﬁ_'

vaiuntary decision to enter into this Plea Agreemcm

‘VOLUNTARY PLEA

23.  The défendant;s decision to enter into this Plea Agreement aﬁd i@ té?ld@,l" apleaof =
guilty is freéiy and valuntarily made énd is not the result of fcrce_,' threats, assuraﬁcés;_ promises, | |
- or represen'tations other than the 'represematiogs i<:01n£ajned in ﬂ]?S l?lea Agregg}}eﬁt," The United
| States hﬁs made no promises or représentatjons__ta tht; dgfendani as to whether thc Cqur_t will

écccp{ or reject the recommendations containedwithjn_ this Plea Agreement.

VIOLATION OF PLEA AGREEMENT
- 24 - The defendant agrees that, should the United States deten;nine in good.

faith, 'dunnc the period that any Federal Proceeding is pendmg, that mc deiendam has faﬂed to
provide full and truthful cocaperaﬁon as descnbed in paragraph 19 of this P}ea‘ Avreement or has
otherwise violated any provxsmn of this Plea Agreement, the United States _Wl}l- no{xfy the
defendant or her coaase} in ‘wﬁting by personal or avern_ﬁ ght delivery or facsimi}e transm_issioﬁ
and may aﬁso notify her couﬁsei 23}1 ie}ephoné of its énzentigﬂ‘ io- ;mid any G'f itg Qbh’.gatii}ns unrj.er
this Plea Agreement (except its obligations under this parabraph} and the defendant shall be
subject to prosecution for any federal crime of which the United States has knowledos mclude
r bm not hmlted to, the subsiamwe affenses re}atmg t@ ﬁae mvesuvaimn resu}tmg in ﬂns Plca
Agreement. The defendam agrees that, in the event that the Umteci Siates is reieased from i its

obligations under this Plea Agreemem and hz_mgs criminal charges agasns; t)he-defendanﬁ for any

Relevém Offense, the statute of limitations period for such offense will be tolled for the period |

i6



between the date of the signing of this Plea 'Agreement' and six (6) months after the date the |

United States gave noﬁCe of its intent 1o void its obli gati@ns under this Plea Agreexﬁcnt.

| 23. The defendant understands and agrees that in any further prosecution of her
resulting from the release of the United States from its Qbiigatioﬁs ‘und:er*thils Plea Agreement
bz_ised on the defendant’s vid%atéon of the Plea A,fgreemem7 any decufnems-, statemems,:
information, testimony, or evidénce provided by her to a{tomeys or agents of the Uni_téd Stgtes,
feﬁera‘i grand juries, or courts, and any leads derived therefrom, may be used against her in'any
' sﬁch fqr-t}hwr‘prosccusion.‘ In add'i.tion, the defendant ﬁnconditio’hél!y waives her rxght to challenge

the use of such evédéncc in any such further prosecution, notwithstanding Fed. R. Evid. 410.

DUPLICITY WAIVER
26. Defendam agrees {0 waive any objéction 51‘ defense she might have based on {he |
lUmtcd States _}ommo ina smg}e count, as set foz‘th in Count One of the mfoz‘mahon multiple
distinct and separate offenses of wire fraud. Defendant uﬁderstands that this waiver is knowingly

'a'nd voluntarily made after fully conf_em'ﬁg with, and on the advice of, her counsel.

. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT
27.  This Plea Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the United States

‘and the defendant concerning the disposiﬁion of the criminal charges in this case. This Plea

' Agreemcm cazmoz be modzﬁcd excepl in wnung, si gned by the Unned States and the defenciant
28.  Theundersigned a‘ttomeys foz the United States have been authorized by the

At&omev General of the United States to enter this Plea Agreemem on ‘beha@f of the E}n;teé Stases

17



' 29‘ A facsimile or electronicaﬂv scanned signature shall be deemed an

R angmal signature for the gsmpose of execunng ﬁus Pled Agreemcnt Multiple sagnamre

- pages are auﬂaonzeé for the purpose of executmg this ?}ea Agreemﬂn‘t

E}"ﬁ b Ao K 1 = = '.""' - ..._.—--

Mark W‘.\l"]letchcr K "
Calvin C. Cheung ‘é_\
Trial Attorzieys '

United States Department of Justice -
Antxtms% Divxsmn

I have read this ag:reemcnt and carcﬁﬁly a-ewewed evexy part of it mﬁl my

attgmcy 1 uriderstand it, and 1 vo}untzm}y agree to it Spec:lﬁcally, I have reviewed the |

* factual and advisory Gmdehnes sﬁpu}ancns mth my attomey, and 1 donot wish to

o change any part ofit. I understand ﬂns ?]ea Agreement, and I voluntarily agree o it 1 -

- am qompletel_y satisfied with th_e represgntahan gf my aﬁW

et

“Date -



T am Diana Bakir Demilta’s attbmcy. 1 have carefully reviewed every part of this

agreement with her. To my knowledge, her decision to enter into this agrecment is

' infofm:& and voluntary,

Date . | o Tsi'aa‘\hyB Mﬂ:f.sq
. _ ‘ Mag s&McD ot LLC

q/él‘-}llﬁoa“

Date

Wiseniﬂcrg & Wisenberg PLLC
Washington, D.C.

1%



